
Committee Agenda  
 

 

1 

 

 
AREA PLANNING SUBCOMMITTEE SOUTH 
Wednesday, 28th March, 2012 
 
Place: Roding Valley High School, Brook Road, Loughton, Essex 

IG10 3JA 
  
Room: Dining Hall 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Mark Jenkins   (The Office of the Chief Executive) 
Tel: 01992 564607   Email: 
democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors J Hart (Chairman), Ms S Watson (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, 
R Barrett, K Chana, Mrs T Cochrane, R Cohen, D Dodeja, C Finn, Ms J Hart, J Knapman, 
L Leonard, A Lion, J Markham, G Mohindra, Mrs C Pond, Mrs P Richardson, B Sandler, 
P Spencer, Mrs J Sutcliffe, H Ulkun, Mrs L Wagland and D Wixley 
 
 
 

 
A PLAN SHOWING THE LOCATION OF RODING VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL IS 

ATTACHED TO THIS AGENDA. A BRIEFING WILL BE HELD FOR THE CHAIRMAN, 
VICE-CHAIRMAN AND GROUP SPOKESPERSONS OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE, AT  

6.30 P.M. PRIOR TO THE MEETING 
 

 
 

WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 

“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be filmed live for 
subsequent uploading to the internet and will be capable of repeated viewing. 
 

If you are seated in the public seating area then it is possible that the recording 
cameras will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image 
will become part of the broadcast although Officers will try and avoid this. 
 

This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you have any 
concerns about this then you should speak to the Webcasting Officer.” 
 

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer before the meeting on 01992 564249. 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 28 March 2012 
 

2 

 
 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   

 
  1. This meeting is to be webcast;  

 
2. Members are reminded of the need to activate their microphones before 
speaking; and  
 
3. the Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be filmed live for 
subsequent uploading to the Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing. 
 
If you are seated in the public seating area it is possible that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast although Officers will try and avoid this. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you have any concerns 
about this you should speak to the Webcasting Officer.” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 10) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached together with a plan 

showing the location of the meeting. 
 

 3. MINUTES  (Pages 11 - 32) 
 

  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee. 
 

 4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 33 - 78) 
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications 
as set out in the attached schedule 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 28 March 2012 
 

3 

Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 
Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 

Paragraph Number 
Nil Nil Nil 

 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 28 March 2012 
 

4 

 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are 
the public excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front 
page of the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the 
Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on 
the day before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of 
the agenda. Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must 
register with Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning 
Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), 
the local Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would 
normally withdraw from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the 
meeting on an item and then withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the 
Sub-Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind 
that you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers 
may clarify matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-
Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will 
determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my 
objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send 
further information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through 
Democratic Services or our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information 
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with your 
application. 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they 
will listen to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear 
any speakers’ presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and 
vote on either the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by 
the Subcommittee. Should the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action 
different to officer recommendation, they are required to give their reasons for doing 
so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or 
Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next 
meeting of the District Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your 
Voice’ 
 

Page 6



Area Plans Subcommittee South – Location Plan

PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.software-partners.co.uk

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Area Planning Subcommittee South  2011-12 
Members of the Committee: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 

Cllr James 
Hart 

Cllr Dodeja 

Cllr Angold-
Stephens 

Cllr Barrett 

Cllr Lion Cllr 
Markham 

Cllr 
Mohindra 

Cllr Pond 

Cllr 
Spencer 

Cllr 
Sutcliffe 

Cllr 
Wagland 

Cllr 
Richardson 

Cllr Cohen Cllr Finn Cllr Jennie 
Hart 

Cllr 
Knapman 

Cllr Watson Cllr Chana 

Cllr Ulkun 

Cllr 
Cochrane 

Cllr Leonard 

Cllr 
Sandler 

Cllr Wixley 

Use this QR code to 
access contact 
details for this 
Committee 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee 

South 
Date: 29 February 2012  

    
Place: Roding Valley High School, Brook 

Road, Loughton, Essex IG10 3JA 
Time: 7.30  - 10.10 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

J Hart (Chairman), Ms S Watson (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, 
R Barrett, Mrs T Cochrane, R Cohen, D Dodeja, C Finn, Ms J Hart, 
J Knapman, L Leonard, J Markham, G Mohindra, Mrs C Pond, 
Mrs P Richardson, B Sandler, P Spencer, Mrs L Wagland and D Wixley 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

 
 - 

  
Apologies: K Chana, A Lion, Mrs J Sutcliffe and H Ulkun 
  
Officers 
Present: 

N Richardson (Assistant Director (Development Control)), K Smith (Senior 
Planning Officer), G J Woodhall (Democratic Services Officer), A Hendry 
(Democratic Services Officer) and M Jenkins (Democratic Services Assistant) 

  
 

67. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. 
 

68. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings. 
 

69. MINUTES  
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) That the minutes of the meeting held on 1 February 2012 be taken as read 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 

70. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Wixley 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being  a 
Tree Warden. The Councillor had determined that his interest was not prejudicial and 
would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting 
thereon: 
• EPF/0143/11 5 Stradbroke Park, Tomswood Road, Chigwell. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 11



Area Planning Subcommittee South  29 February 2012 

2 

 
(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors J Knapman, 
G Mohindra, B Sandler and Mrs L Wagland declared a personal interest in the 
following items of the agenda, by virtue of being a member of Chigwell Parish 
Council. The Councillors had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and 
would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting 
thereon: 
• EPF/0143/12 5 Stradbroke Park, Tomswood Road, Chigwell; 
• EPF/2103/11 Beagles Hut, Retreat Way, Chigwell; 
• EPF/2300/11 Brookside Garage, Gravel Lane, Chigwell; 
• EPF/2310/11 144 Manor Road, Chigwell; 
• EPF/2501/11 106 Lambourne Road, Chigwell; and 
• EPF/2526/11 West Hatch High School, High Road, Chigwell. 
 
(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Wixley 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being  a 
former player for Buckhurst Hill Football Club, and knowing the applicant and one of 
the objectors. The Councillor had determined that his interest was not prejudicial and 
would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting 
thereon: 
• EPF/2342/11 Buckhurst Hill Football Club, Roding Lane, Buckhurst Hill. 
 
(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Dodeja 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of his 
Grandson playing football at the ground. The Councillor had determined that his 
interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of 
the application and voting thereon: 
• EPF/2342/11 Buckhurst Hill FC, Roding Lane, Buckhurst Hill. 
 
(e) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Ms S Watson 
declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda, by virtue of being a 
member of Buckhurst Hill Parish Council. The Councillor had determined that her 
interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of 
the application and voting thereon: 
• EPF/2342/11 Buckhurst Hill FC, Roding Lane, Buckhurst Hill; 
• EPF/0050/12 29 Russell Road, Buckhurst Hill; and 
• EPF/0066/12 29 The Meadway, Buckhurst Hill. 
 
(f) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Wixley 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being  a 
member of Loughton Town Council. The Councillor had determined that his interest 
was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon: 
• EPF/2433/11 T11 Site, Langston Road, Loughton; and 
• EPF/2473/11 26 Broadstrood, Loughton. 
 
(g) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor G Mohindra 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being the 
Portfolio Holder responsible for the adjoining land owned by the Council. The 
Councillor had determined that his interest was prejudicial and would leave the 
meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
• EPF/2433/11 T11 Site, Langston Road, Loughton. 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



Area Planning Subcommittee South  29 February 2012 

3 

(h) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor J Knapman 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being the 
Portfolio Holder that sold the T11 site to Polofind Limited. The Councillor had 
determined that his interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for 
the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
• EPF/2433/11 T11 Site, Langston Road, Loughton. 
 
(i) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs C Pond 
declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda, by virtue of being  a 
member of Loughton Town Council. The Councillor had determined that her interest 
was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon: 
• EPF/2433/11 T11 Site, Langston Road, Loughton; and 
• EPF/2473/11 26 Broadstrood, Loughton. 
 
(j) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor C Finn 
declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda, by virtue of being  a 
member of Loughton Residents Association. The Councillor had determined that his 
interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of 
the application and voting thereon: 
• EPF/2433/11 T11 Site, Langston Road, Loughton;  
• EPF/2439/11 2 Lower Park Road, Loughton; 
• EPF/2440/11 2 Lower Park Road, Loughton; and 
• EPF/2473/11 26 Broadstrood, Loughton. 
 
(k) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs P 
Richardson declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda, by 
virtue of being  a member of Loughton Town Council. The Councillor had determined 
that her interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
• EPF/2433/11 T11 Site, Langston Road, Loughton;  
• EPF/2439/11 2 Lower Park Road, Loughton; 
• EPF/2440/11 2 Lower Park Road, Loughton; 
• EPF/2473/11 26 Broadstrood, Loughton; and 
• EPF/2509/11 Land adj to 16 Grasmere Close, Loughton. 
 
(l) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor K Angold-
Stephens declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda, by virtue 
of being a member of Loughton Town Council. The Councillor had determined that 
his interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration 
of the application and voting thereon: 
• EPF/2439/11 2 Lower Park Road, Loughton; 
• EPF/2473/11 26 Broadstrood, Loughton; and 
• EPF/2509/11 Land adj to 16 Grasmere Close, Loughton. 
 
(m) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor K Angold-
Stephens declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda, by virtue 
of being  a member of Loughton Residents Association. The Councillor had 
determined that his interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for 
the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
• EPF/2439/11 2 Lower Park Road, Loughton; and 
• EPF/2509/11 Land adj to 16 Grasmere Close, Loughton. 
 
 

Page 13



Area Planning Subcommittee South  29 February 2012 

4 

(n) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs C Pond 
and D Wixley declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda, by 
virtue of being  a member of Loughton Town Council and Loughton Residents 
Association. The Councillors had determined that their interest was not prejudicial 
and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting 
thereon: 
• EPF/2439/11 2 Lower Park Road, Loughton; 
• EPF/2440/11 2 Lower Park Road, Loughton; and 
• EPF/2473/11 26 Broadstrood, Loughton. 
 
(o) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Ms T 
Cochrane, R Cohen, Ms J Hart, L Leonard and J Markham declared a personal 
interest in the following items of the agenda, by virtue of being  a member of 
Loughton Residents Association. The Councillors had determined that their interest 
was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon: 
• EPF/2439/11 2 Lower Park Road, Loughton;  
• EPF/2440/11 2 Lower Park Road, Loughton and 
• EPF/2509/11 Land adj to 16 Grasmere Close, Loughton. 
 
(p) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Dodeja 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda. The Councillor had 
determined that his interest was prejudicial and would leave the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
• EPF/0050/12 29 Russell Road, Buckhurst Hill. 
 
(q) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor P Spencer 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda. The Councillor had 
determined that his interest was prejudicial and would leave the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
• EPF/0050/12 29 Russell Road, Buckhurst Hill. 
 
(r) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Ms S Watson 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of not being 
perceived as impartial due to recent literature naming one of the addresses as being 
a member of a political team. The Councillor had determined that her interest was 
prejudicial and would leave the meeting for the consideration of the application and 
voting thereon: 
• EPF/0050/12 29 Russell Road, Buckhurst Hill. 
 

71. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee. 
 

72. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  
 
The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) That the planning applications numbered 1 – 14 be determined as set out in 
the attached schedule to these minutes. 
 
 
 

Page 14



Area Planning Subcommittee South  29 February 2012 

5 

73. DELEGATED DECISIONS  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Director of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 
 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0143/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 5 Stradbroke Park  

Tomswood Road 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5QL 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Grange Hill 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/54/08 
T1 - Dawn Redwood - Fell 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=534566 
 
CONDITIONS:  
 

1. The work authorised by this consent shall be carried out under the direct supervision 
of the Local Planning Authority, who shall receive in writing, 5 working days notice of 
such works. 
 

2. All work authorised by this consent shall be undertaken in a manner consistent with 
British Standard 3998 (2010) (or with any similar replacement Standard). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Minute Item 72

Page 7Page 17



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2103/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Beagles Hut  

Retreat Way  
Chigwell  
Essex 
IG7 6EL 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Row 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Variation of condition 7 ' no windows other than any shown' of 
planning approval EPF/2003/10 (Minor material amendment 
on EPF/0485/09 (detached house), numerous alterations 
including addition of basement level) 
 

 DECISION: Refused 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=532019 
 
 
REASONS FOR REFUSAL: 
 

1. The proposed first floor window addition and alterations would result in undue 
overlooking and loss of privacy to neighbouring residential property, contrary to policy 
DBE2 and DBE9 of the Councils Adopted Local Plan. 
 

 
 

 

Page 8Page 18



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2300/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Brookside Garage  

Gravel Lane 
Chigwell  
Essex 
IG7 6DQ 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 
Lambourne 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of replacement workshop and resurfacing existing 
yard. 
 

DECISION: Referred to District Development Control Committee 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=532683 
 
 
APPLICATION REFERRED TO DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE, WITH A 
RECOMMENDATION TO GRANT PERMISSION: 
 
Members considered that the new building would not be conspicuous from within the Green Belt or 
harmful to the street scene. It is an existing employment site and the additional MOT facility would 
benefit the local rural economy. However, as it would be contrary to the green belt policy of the 
Local Plan, the application be referred to District Development Control Committee with a 
recommendation to grant planning permission, subject to suggested conditions by the planning 
officer.

Page 9Page 19



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2310/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 144 Manor Road  

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5PX 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Grange Hill 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Minor material amendment - Alterations to approved plans of 
planning permission EPF/0139/08 (Reserved matters 
application for 10 flats.). Amendments involve additional 
accommodation in the second floor (roof plan), new terraced 
areas at first and second floor levels and alterations to the 
approved fenestration. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=532725 
 
CONDITIONS:  
 

1. The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 07.125.01, 07.125.02 rev.G, 07.125.03 rev.J, 07.125.04 
rev.J, 07.125.05 rev.G, 07.125.06 rev.J, 07.125.07 rev.G, 07.125.08 rev.C,  
07.125.09 rev.F, and 07.125.11. Supporting Design and Access Statement 
November 2011, including the retention of obscure glazing where it is indicated on 
the approved plans.   
 

 
 
 

 

Page 10Page 20



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2342/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Buckhurst Hill Football Club 

Roding Lane 
Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 6BJ 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill East 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Retention of the erection/installation of palisade fencing and 
gated entrance/exit to Football pitch area. 
 

DECISION: Refused 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=532849 
 
 
REASONS FOR REFUSAL: 
 

1. The fencing and gates, due to its inappropriate height, design and position is unsightly 
and therefore harms the openness of this part of the Metropolitan Green Belt, contrary 
to policies CP2, GB2A and GB7A of the Adopted Local Plan. 
 

 
 

Page 11Page 21



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2433/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: T11 Site  

Langston Road 
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 3TH 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Broadway 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Application to extend the period of time for commencement of 
planning permission granted under reference EPF/1884/08 
(Reserved matters application for proposed Data Centre. 
(Mixed B1/ B8) - Details of access, appearance, layout and 
scale) 
 

DECISION: Deferred 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533224 
 
 
DEFERRED: 
 
The committee deferred making a decision on this application until after the outcome of whether 
the National Planning Casework Unit decide to call-in the decision of this Council’s resolution to 
grant of planning permission for EPF/2580/10 that relates to this site. 

 

Page 12Page 22



Report Item No: 7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2439/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 2 Lower Park Road 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 4NA  
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Forest 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Minor material amendment to planning permission 
EPF/2024/06 (erection of 8 flats) including raising the roof 
over 'flat 4' to allow space in the roof to be used as part of 
residential duplex unit. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533260 
 
CONDITIONS:  
 

1. The development hereby amended by this approval shall have been commenced 
within a period of three years of the original permission for the development; that is 
by 29 October 2010. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 1209/121C, 1209/122B, 1209/204h, the details of measures 
to be taken to prevent material from vehicles leaving the site being deposited on the 
public highway approved under decision ref. EPF/1908/10, the landscaping works 
approved under decision ref. EPF/1908/10 and the material details approved under 
decision ref. EPF/2215/11. 
 

3. The details of measures to be taken to prevent material from vehicles leaving the 
site being deposited on the public highway approved under decision ref. 
EPF/1908/10 shall be carried out and retained for the duration of the construction 
period. 
 

4. The landscaping works approved under decision ref. EPF/1908/10 shall be carried 
out in accordance with the details approved and the timetable for their 
implementation approved under that decision.  Any trees or plants which, within a 
period of 5 years from the date of planting, are removed or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of 
similar size or species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written approval to 
any variation. 
 

Page 13Page 23



 
5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that 
Order with or without modification), no windows or dormer windows other than those 
expressly authorised by this permission shall be constructed in or on the north-east 
or south-east facing elevations of the building. 
 

6. None of the flats shall be occupied until the areas shown for the parking and 
manoeuvring of vehicles on drawing No. 1209/204h have been surfaced in 
accordance with the details approved under decision ref. EPF/2215/11.  The parking 
and manoeuvring areas shall thereafter be permanently retained for use by vehicles, 
as approved. 
 

7. No gates shall be erected at the vehicular access to the site or across the car 
parking area shown on drawing No. 1209/204h without the prior written permission 
of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 14Page 24



Report Item No: 8 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2440/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 2 Lower Park Road 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 4NA  
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Forest 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Minor amendment applications to planning permission 
EPF/2024/06 (erection of 8 flats) for 1) omission of side 
window to Flat 1 2) Entrance hall door revised, 3) Bay to Flats 
1 and 2 added, 4) reduction of kitchen window heights, 5) 
window fan lights to have one cross, not two, 6) front bay 
window subdivision to Flats 3 and 6, 7) increase in storey 
height by 170mm to eaves and 330mm to ridge, 8) internal 
layouts as construction drawings, 9) external works layout 
changes, 10) AOV to roof and 11) material changes. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533261 
 
 
CONDITIONS:  
 

1. The development hereby approved shall have been commenced within a period of 
three years of the original permission for the development; that is by 29 October 
2010. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 1209/121D1209/204h, 1209/205E, 1209/208D, 1209/212A 
the details of measures to be taken to prevent material from vehicles leaving the site 
being deposited on the public highway approved under decision ref. EPF/1908/10, 
the landscaping works approved under decision ref. EPF/1908/10 and the material 
details approved under decision ref. EPF/2215/11. 
 

3. The details of measures to be taken to prevent material from vehicles leaving the 
site being deposited on the public highway approved under decision ref. 
EPF/1908/10 shall be carried out and retained for the duration of the construction 
period. 
 

4. The landscaping works approved under decision ref. EPF/1908/10 shall be carried 
out in accordance with the details approved and the timetable for their 
implementation approved under that decision.  Any trees or plants which, within a 
period of 5 years from the date of planting, are removed or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of 
similar size or species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written approval to 
any variation. 

Page 15Page 25



 

5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that 
Order with or without modification), no windows or dormer windows other than those 
expressly authorised by this permission shall be constructed in or on the north-east 
or south-east facing elevations of the building. 
 

6. None of the flats shall be occupied until the areas shown for the parking and 
manoeuvring of vehicles on drawing No. 1209/204h have been surfaced in 
accordance with the details approved under decision ref. EPF/2215/11.  The parking 
and manoeuvring areas shall thereafter be permanently retained for use by vehicles, 
as approved. 
 

7. No gates shall be erected at the vehicular access to the site or across the car 
parking area shown on drawing No. 1209/204h without the prior written permission 
of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 16Page 26



Report Item No: 9 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2473/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 26 Broadstrood 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 2SB 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Johns 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Ground floor and first floor rear extension with patio area, loft 
conversion and extension, front extension to garage to form 
entrance porch. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533388 
 
CONDITIONS:  
 

1. The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2. Prior to first occupation of the loft conversion component of the development hereby 
approved, the proposed window openings (rooflights) in the side facing roof slopes 
of the two-storey rear extension nearest the site boundaries with 24 and 28 
Broadstrood shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a 
height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed and 
shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 

3. Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

4. All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 17Page 27



Report Item No: 10 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2501/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 106 Lambourne Road  

Chigwell 
Essex  
IG7 6EJ 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Row 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Extension of time limit to planning permission EPF/2027/08. 
(Which gave approval to two storey extensions to the front, 
side and rear, and single storey extensions to side and rear) 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533454 
 
CONDITIONS:  
 

1. The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
two years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2. Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
openings in the east side elevation at first floor level shall be entirely fitted with 
obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of 
the room in which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that 
condition. 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 18Page 28



Report Item No: 11 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2509/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land adjacent to  

16 Grasmere Close 
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 1SL 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Johns 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: New dwelling. (Revised application) 
 

DECISION: 
 

Refused 
 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533496 
 
 
REASONS FOR REFUSAL: 
 

1. The proposed dwelling, by reason of its scale, inappropriate design and use of 
materials, would fail to harmonise with existing dwellings within the cul-de-sac, resulting 
in an adverse impact upon the street scene, contrary to policies CP2, DBE1 and DBE3 
of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

Page 19Page 29



Report Item No: 12 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2526/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: West Hatch High School 

High Road  
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5BT 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Outline application for the demolition of an existing sports 
pavilion and a caretakers house and the construction of a new 
residential development, consisting of a new caretakers flat 
and seven other flats in a new residential building and the 
construction of a new sports hall building. 
 

DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533557 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL: 
 

1. The site lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt where there is a presumption against 
inappropriate development except in very special circumstances. The proposal for 
the residential development is inappropriate development. Whilst the applicant has 
advanced a case of very special circumstances in order to allow funding for the 
sports hall, this does not amount to very exceptional circumstances in this case such 
that it would be sufficient to outweigh the normal presumption against inappropriate 
development. The proposals are therefore contrary to the advice contained in 
Planning Policy Guidance Note 2 and would conflict with policy GB2A of the 
Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

2. The location and siting of the proposed residential block together with associated car 
park areas, makes inadequate provision for the retention of trees and inadequate 
provision for landscaping, contrary to Policies LL10 and LL11 of the Adopted Local 
Plan and Alterations. 
 

3. The plan layout and design of the new residential block will introduce a visually 
prominent building that, due to its overall height, mass, siting and layout, will result in 
a very large and conspicuous building within the Green Belt that will harm the 
openness and rural character, contrary to policies DBE4, CP2 and GB7A of the 
Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

4. The applicant has not provided any supporting information to allow a proper 
examination of established habitats/ wildlife and whether there are any protected 
species at this site. Due to the lack of information, the proposal fails to comply with 
policy NC4 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
 

Page 20Page 30



Report Item No: 13 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0050/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 29 Russell Road 

Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5QJ 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Two storey rear extension. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=534161 
 
CONDITIONS:  
 
 

1. The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2. Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 21Page 31



Report Item No: 14 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0066/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 29 The Meadway 

Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5PG 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Rear and side two storey extension. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=534204 
 
CONDITIONS:  
 

1. The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2. Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed two 
window opening(s) in the first floor east flank elevation, shall be entirely fitted with 
obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of 
the room in which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that 
condition. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 22Page 32



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH 

28 March 2012 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE 

1. EPF/0158/12 
 

3 Little Dragons 
Loughton 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

35 

2. EPF/0233/12 
 

3 Brancaster Place  
Church Hill 
Loughton 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

39 

3. EPF/0568/11 
 

Land to the south of Roding Lane 
Buckhurst Hill 

Refuse Permission 44 

4. EPF/0567/11 
 

Land on south side of Roding 
Lane,  
opposite junction with Rous Road  
and adjoining Buckhurst Hill 
Football Club 
Buckhurst Hill 

Refuse Permission 49 

5. EPF/2542/11 
 

11 Daleside Gardens  
Chigwell 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

52 

6. EPF/2601/11 
 

Land adjoining Rest Harrow 
The Kennels 
Millers Lane 
Chigwell 

Refuse Permission 58 

7. EPF/2610/11 
 

206 Queens Road  
Buckhurst Hill 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

66 

8. EPF/0003/12 
 

Roding Cottage 
Roding Lane 
Chigwell 

Grant Permission 74 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0158/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 3 Little Dragons 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 4DG 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Forest 
 

APPLICANT: Mr John Ratnage 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/CHI/04/70 
T1 - Sycamore - Fell 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=534612 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The work authorised by this consent shall be carried out under the direct supervision 
of the Local Planning Authority, who shall receive in writing, 5 working days notice of 
such works. 
 

 
 
This application is before committee since all applications to fell preserved trees are outside the 
scope of delegated powers. 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
T1 . Sycamore - Fell to ground level. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
This tree stands around 12 metres tall with a one sided, narrow crown. It features as part of a 
diverse collection of mature tree species that fill the garden; remnants of the original landscape 
scheme for Dragons, the large private house.   T1 is located in the side garden of this detached 
house, less than 3 metres from a much larger Redwood. The property is the last house in the 
modern cul-de-sac and T1 is only glimpsed from behind the dominant Redwood.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
TPO/CHI/04/70 was served in response to the subdividing of plots for development from the 
Dragons Estate. As an Area Order, the process of selecting only the best specimens has not been 
carried out. It is unlikely that T1 would merit preservation due to its poor form and structure and 
low public amenity. 

Page 35



 
In recent years pruning of a line of Limes has been granted and a dangerous ornamental ash, with 
serious trunk decay has been removed. 
 
Relevant Policies: 
 
LL9 The Council will not give consent to fell a tree preserved tree unless it is satisfied that this is 
necessary and justified; any tree lost must be replaced. 
 
Summary of Representations 
 
4 neighbours were consulted but no responses have been made. 

 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL were willing to waive their objection should the tree officer deem 
the works acceptable. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
Issues 
 
The application asserts that the tree is structurally flawed due to a poor union with included bark at 
the main stem fork, 2.5 metres above ground level. Wet exudate issues from the eastern side of 
this tight fork and a further tight fork, with included bark is seen at a height of around 5.5 metres 
above ground level. 
 
Inspection of the tree shows a marked lean and exposed buttress roots on the western side of the  
lower stem and base. 
  
Considerations 

 
i) Tree condition and life expectancy.  
 
The tree shows normal levels of vigour but has possibly been partially wind thrown due to the 
changes in ground level visible from one side of the tree to the other. There is discoloration on the 
stem around the tightly formed main fork, which indicates the recent flow of wetness at this union. 
There is evidence of included bark at this fork and further up the tree at another branch fork. The 
poor structural condition of these points will foreshorten the tree’s life expectancy to less than 10 
years. 
 
ii) Public amenity  
 
The tree has ivy well established up its stem, which has concealed structural problems but 
provided some wildlife habitat, which provide secondary amenity in the form of birds and flying 
insects. 
 
Due to the size and evergreen nature of the more prominent Redwood, the Sycamore is barely 
seen and likely to become increasingly obscured in the future. 
 
iii) Suitability of location and pruning alternatives. 
 
At around 3 metres from the Redwood the crown development of the Sycamore has been 
detrimentally affected and suppressed. The tree also stands less than 8 metres from the house 
and its lean is towards the roofline. Should it fail wholly or in part, there is a risk of it hitting the 
house. Therefore, its situation is not ideal and unlikely to improve. Pruning considerations would 
further diminish the tree’s limited size and visibility and can, therefore, be discounted. 

Page 36



 
 
iv) Replacement planting 
 
The plot is well populated with at least seven large and highly visible specimen trees. Therefore, in 
this case, there would be little benefit in requiring replacement planting. 
 
Conclusion 

 
The tree has a poor structure and signs of internal decay. It is not a good specimen and not ideally 
suited to its position. Pruning would not resolve the problems and the tree’s low public amenity 
gives grounds for a recommendation to allow felling of the tree on the grounds that its condition 
and location justify its removal. The proposal is considered to accord with Local Plan Landscape 
Policy LL9 and is , therefore, recommended for approval. 
 
In the event of members granting permission to fell this tree, a condition could be attached to 
ensure a replacement is planted. In this case, because of the number of large trees in the garden it 
is not recommended that this be conditioned in this case.  
   
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Robin Hellier 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564546 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 37



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

60.7m60.7m

63.7m

60.0m

63.7m

60.0m

63.4m63.4m

2 5

44

5 15 1

2 5

7

4 1

1

11

4 1

3

1

3

1

47

4 5

4 3

43a

44

47

4 5

4 3

43a

44

TudorTudor

Foxwood

Lodge

6

Foxwood

Lodge

6

54

52

52a

Dragons

52

54

52a

Dragons

44

11

5454

7

1

L I T T L E

D R A G O N S

D R A G O N S

L I T T L E

H I G
H  S

I L
V E R

U PPER PARK

H I G
H  S

I L
V E R

U PPER PARK

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 
Application Number: EPF/0158/11 
Site Name: 3 Little Dragons, Loughton 

IG10 4DG 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 38



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0233/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 3 Brancaster Place  

Church Hill 
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 1QN 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Marys 
 

APPLICANT: Mrs Nina Welch 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/03/94 
T2 - Horse Chestnut - Fell 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=534868 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The work authorised by this consent shall not be carried out unless the Local 
Planning Authority shall be given, in writing, 5 working days notice of such work. 
 

 
 
This application is before this committee as any application to fell a preserved tree falls outside the 
scope of delegated powers. 
 
Description of Site 
 
The tree is one of a pair retained following redevelopment of the site in the mid 1990’s and stands 
on the northern fence line of the narrow rear garden, some 12m from the rear elevation.  3 
Brancaster Place is the central of five Townhouse style properties, set 15m back from Church Hill.   
 
Description of Proposal 
 
Horse Chestnut; fell to ground level 
 
Relevant History 
 
TPO/EPF/03/94 was served to protect several trees in advance of development for housing.  
Permission has been given to prune this tree in 1997, 2001, 2003, 2005 and 2011.  The latter, 
EPF/0933/11, by the owner of no. 2, has been implemented, and allowed an overall reduction of 
height and spread.   
 

Page 39



In summary, reasonably regular pruning of both chestnuts has been allowed, but excessive 
pruning (e.g. removal of all branches overhanging no. 2, or felling of either tree), has been refused, 
and decisions to refuse have been upheld at appeal.   
 
Relevant Policies 
 
LL9 – Felling of preserved trees  
‘the council will not give consent to fell a tree…protected by a TPO unless it is satisfied that this is 
necessary and justified…..any such consent will be conditional upon the appropriate replacement 
of the tree’  
 
Summary of Representations 
 
2 BRANCASTER PLACE.  Support application.  Tree is too large.  Causes big problems with no 
light to garden when in bloom, to the extent that grass cannot grow.  Have had to lay shingles 
instead of having a lawn.   
 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL: object to any applications to fell protected trees and therefore 
objected.  Further consider that the ability to sell was not a material planning consideration; 
questioned whether the tree could not be pruned instead.  Refer to historic link to previous use as 
smithy 
. 
HILLS AMENITY SOCIETY: strongly object.  Part of the original planning agreement was that the 
tree should be retained.  The new owners would have been aware of the TPO on purchase, and 
the previous owners had the tree sympathetically pruned.   
 
LRA PLANS GROUP: object.  The house was built after the tree was established, and property 
was bought in the knowledge of its existence and of the TPO.  The previous owner has been 
allowed to prune the tree on several occasions, as has the neighbour.  Sympathise with the new 
owners but feel that the pruning option should be further explored.  Nevertheless will withdraw 
objection should the Arboriculturist agree the proposal, subject to consideration of a replacement 
tree.    
 
Issues and Considerations 
 
The application is made on the basis that for a wide range of reasons the tree is unsuitable for a 
garden of this size; as such it is overpowering, covering ½ the garden when in leaf.   
 
In support the applicant reports: 

1. Lack of consistency: the council recently felled one of the chestnuts on the Church Hill 
pavement.  Points out that this tree, and the remaining one, were/are much more 
prominent. 

2. Horse Chestnuts are prone to shedding branches; they are suitable for parks etc, not 
gardens.  Refers to 21 month old daughter, and that the tree is frightening.  

3. Presence of adjacent tree would mitigate loss. 
4. Danger of conkers restricting use of garden by young daughter. 
5. Browning of leaves in summer shows that tree is diseased. 
6. Excessive light loss and consequent difficulty in gardening, or growing a lawn. 
7. Excessive leaf fall, and consequent difficulties, including a rotten shed. 
8. Grey squirrels resident in tree eating garden plants and veg. 
9. At the site meeting it was also clear that the tree restricted sunlight to the rear rooms of 

the property.   
 

Page 40



Discussion 
 
The main issues are considered to be how serious these problems are and also how great is the 
actual public amenity value of the tree, given its reduced state.   
 
Firstly, in relation to the reasons given, the first two points may be (largely) discounted.  The 
careful pruning carried out eliminates any significant risk of the shedding of limbs; were the 
species so intrinsically dangerous it would also be unsuitable for parks.  The highway tree that was 
felled had been found to have a serious trunk rot, and could not be safely retained.  However it is 
true that the preserved tree is not prominent, and fear may be real, even if unwarranted.   
 
Nor can it be accepted that it is reasonable to rely on the presence of the neighbouring tree as a 
reason for accepting the loss of this.   
 
In relation to the fall of conkers the removal of all of the lower branches does mean that anything 
falling from the tree is falling from a significant height.  Nevertheless the danger of significant injury 
is in reality very small, only exists for a limited period of each year and could be further reduced by 
a more severe pruning back of the side branches, but again it is accepted that the anxiety is real.   
 
The leaf browning that now affects all horse chestnuts in the area to some degree is the result of a 
leaf mining insect.  There are no safety implications and the consensus is that there is probably no 
long term health impact, but nevertheless it does have a disfiguring impact towards the later 
months of each summer.   
 
The remaining issues raised are accepted as aspects of a general diminishing of the ability of the 
residents to fully enjoy their property, but would not normally be seen as sufficient to justify 
removal of a preserved tree, given the acknowledged benefits of trees in the town, and their 
significant contribution to general well being.   
 
The second main consideration is then the relative value of the tree.  Here it clearly has general 
benefit as a wildlife resource, and by cleaning the air etc, as does any large urban tree.  However 
its public, visual amenity is low.  As noted the properties are set well back from Church Hill.  This 
was done deliberately, to reflect the general building line, but created a tension between residents 
and the trees from the outset.  The reduction of the crowns of (both) has reduced their public value 
considerably, since they are now only glimpsed over the roofline, and have minimal public value.  
The position is potentially recoverable in that the application tree could be allowed to grow on by 
refusing any further height reductions, but that would clearly only increase the unsatisfactory 
situation from the residents’ perspective.   
 
At the site inspection it was noted that there were four trees, planted pursuant to the planning 
conditions, which have become established on the Church Hill frontage.  These trees have the 
potential to become far more important to public amenity.   
 
In the event that permission to fell were agreed a replacement, such as a birch, could be required 
at the far end of the garden.  This would have a general benefit to neighbours, but no significant 
public amenity for the foreseeable future,   No replacement planting condition is therefore 
proposed.   
 
Conclusion 
 
It is concluded that in this case the balance favours felling, particular because it is considered that 
the loss of this tree will not have a significant adverse impact on public amenity.  The application is 
accordingly recommended for approval, in accordance with policy LL9.   
 
 

Page 41



Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
TPO Application Case Officer: Christopher Neilan 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564117 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 

61.9m

63.7m

61.9m

63.7m

50.9m50.9m

C R

W a r d
 B d y

W a r d
 B d y C R

1

5 6

Sub Sta

Meads

Sub Sta

2a

82

77

4

61

63

2

59

55

6 2

6 0

67

Ashmeads

El
Sub Sta

49
43

47

41

1

19 to 24

73

31

25 to 30

32

13 to 18
13 to 18

Meads

4 8

53
5 2

53

5

El
Sub Sta

5 6

3 8

3 2

3 4

3 0
a

8 6
8

2

Almond
House

82

House

2a

63

65

67

69

67a

1

63a

65a

35

39

47

47a

7 0

49

107
101

105
105

4

63

2

63a

67a
67

69

6 2

73

65

Ashmeads

65a

77

5 2
61

4 8

19 to 24

2

31

8

25 to 30

32

3 2

43

3 8

53

47

107
101

53

59

47

55

49

5

6 0

1

67

63

El

El

3 4

3 0
a

41

49

39
47a

7 0

35

Almond 8 6

C H
U R C H

 H
I L

L

C H
U R C H

 H
I L

L

Place

LB

Brancaster
Place

LB

Brancaster

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

2 
Application Number: EPF/0233/12 
Site Name: 3 Brancaster Place, Church Hill 

Loughton, IG10 1QN 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 43



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0568/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land to the south of Roding Lane 

Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 6BJ 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill East 
 

APPLICANT: Alliance Land (Properties) Ltd 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/110/10 
W1 - Woodland management as specified in attached 
management plan 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=526550 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 Realisation of the potential benefits of the proposal would depend upon a sustained 
period of management following implementation of the initial works.  The lack of any 
agreement to such management means that the Local Planning Authority has no 
reasonable surety that the necessary operations will be undertaken for a sufficient 
period for any significant level of benefit to be achieved.  It is therefore preferable for 
the wood to be allowed to continue to develop naturally.  The proposal is therefore 
contrary to policies LL7 and LL9 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is in part an application to fell preserved trees 
and is recommended for approval and so is outside the scope of delegated powers.   
 
It was considered at the previous committee of 12/12/11 but deferred for investigation of whether 
the proposed benefits of management could be secured.   
 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The wood stands west of the Roding, off Roding lane, and to the rear of properties off Albert Rd 
and The Windsors, and Buckhurst Hill CP School.    
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
Selective thinning and coppicing of an area of woodland area and remedial pruning of veteran 
trees, as set out in the revised management plan dated May 2011. Members will note that this 
report and recommendation needs to be taken alongside EPF/0567/11.   
 

Page 44



Relevant History: 
 
The TPO was made in 1983, when the wood was relatively young, as a result of concerns that it 
might be threatened by potential development.  There have been no recent relevant applications.  
Access was agreed for site surveying and clearance of Japanese Knotweed that were in 
themselves exempt from planning control.  
 
Relevant Policies: 
 
LL3: Edge of settlement.   
LL7: Planting, protection and care of trees. 
LL8: Works to preserved trees. 
LL9: Felling of preserved trees.  (Summary: Felling must be demonstrated to be necessary and 
justified.  Any felled trees must be replaced.) 
 
Summary of Representations 
 
BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL:  Objects: contrary to local plans and would destroy wildlife 
corridors.   
 
CPRE:  Support the application, because appears designed to enhance the conservation value of 
the wood, and there are proposals to involve the community.   
Have suggestions, including that grants may be available, that improvement of this area has 
positive implications for the wider green network, that arisings could be usefully put to 
conservation purpose and that care should be taken with seed sources.  Hope that neighbours will 
continue to be informed.   
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
Introduction 
 
The application is presented as being for the benefit of the wildlife value and appearance of the 
wood.  The proposals come as part of a comprehensive assessment of the site, in the form of a 
management plan leading to a 5 year programme of works, shown in plan form, with 
accompanying schedules of works.   
 
The plan also gives details of works not controlled by the TPO, including re-profiling existing 
mounds of tipped material, restoration of ponds and ditches, planting of hedges and enhancement 
of the ground flora.  These works do not form part of this application, and cannot be secured by 
conditions attached to it, but may be considered and secured under the accompanying planning 
application.   
 
The wood is an important visual feature of the area, valued by local residents.  It appears to have 
arisen by natural seeding from pre-existing hedgerow trees before being given blanket protection 
in 1983.  The land had been previously used in part for brickworks.   
 
The site may be divided into 2 areas, broadly north and south:  
1) north of an old internal ditchline, and fronting Roding Lane, and  
2) south of that ditch, and bounded by housing, and commercial premises on Alfred Rd, to the 
west, The Windsors to the south, and a playing field to the east.   
 
The northern section seems to be on the original ground.  Mostly it is thick with relatively young 
sapling trees, but there are important veteran trees along Roding Lane, and also towards the 
centre, by the old ditch and pond.  There is little ground cover, and in parts it is impenetrable.  The 
southern section appears to be where excavation had previously taken place.  There are groups of 

Page 45



trees, but also open areas, with few or no trees, which are thickly covered by bramble.  There are 
also substantial piles of surface debris, with hardcore, bricks, tyres and other materials. There has 
been an extensive infestation by Japanese Knotweed to the west.  The owners have begun an 
eradication program.   
 
According to the proposals, by year 5 small grassed glades would have been created in the 
northern section; restoration pruning would have been undertaken on the several veteran trees; 
the area around the central ditch and pond would have been opened up, and the more open 
southern area converted to meadow.  In that southern area the main groups of trees and important 
individuals would be retained, including the most important in the spur linking the wood to the 
junction of Alfred Rd to Roding Lane, and providing visual screening for residents in Alfred Rd. and 
Windsor Wood.   
 
Considerations 
 
The key issues are considered to be whether: 
1) The proposed staged thinning of younger trees will have beneficial results for biodiversity; 
2) The formative pruning of the veteran trees has been justified: 
3) Any potential negative consequences may be foreseen; 
4) How the potential benefits may be secured.   
 
In relation to these the increase in internal spaces, and increased habitat diversity would be 
beneficial for wildlife and the pruning of the veteran trees would help to secure their long-term 
retention.   
 
The thinning proposals are quite modest, which should limit the change in external appearance of 
the site.  The proposals include the proviso that the management should be assessed at the end 
of each year; the next year’s proposals would not be allowed to commence if there had been any 
substantial departure from the proposals as agreed.  Words to secure this are suggested as a 
Grampian condition. 
 
Because of the very specific constraints in the legislation applying to replacing felled TPO trees the 
various wildlife and landscape benefits cannot be secured by condition under this application, but 
may be considered and conditioned to some extent and for a limited period under the 
accompanying planning application.  However they might also be secured by means of a legal 
agreement for a longer period, subject to the consent of the applicants.   
 
It has therefore been put to the applicants that they might demonstrate their good faith, and give 
reassurance as to the initial harmful effects of the proposals being compensated for by longer term 
management, that is for 15 years, rather than 5 as proposed.  In particular an article 4 direction 
could secure the freedom from obstruction, such as fencing, of the internal area and a Section 106 
direction could secure the active management of the site for the nature conservation purposes, as 
set out in the application, by the current owners or their successors.  That has been put to the 
agents for the owners by letter, and at a subsequent meeting, but has not been agreed 
 
Conclusion 
 
That no weight may be placed upon the management proposals that support the application, and 
therefore these cannot be taken to counteract the initial adverse impact of the thinning of the 
woodland.  It is therefore concluded that the proposal fails to accord with the relevant policies and 
should be refused.   
 
 

Page 46



Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
TPO Application Case Officer: Christopher Neilan 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564117 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

17.1m

26.5m

24.4m26.2m

18.9m

28.0m

24.1m

28.3m

26.8m

31.4m

30.2m

29.9m

29.0m

Pavilion

46

2 9

48

6 1
4 1

5 3 5 5

Pavilion

1 6

2

1 8

30

15

8

1 0
1 2

1 4

23
19

9

21
17

1

6 7

41

35

25

37

40

45

39

43

4 9

15

23

88 90

19

20
a

20

39

16

1 3
1

2

27

2 4

1 4

3 6

Buckhurst Hill

Primary School

1
6

Tu d o r  P l a c e

Community

1 4

86

1 0

12

6 5

6

76

14

1

5 7

5 5

22

2 7

24
30

4 1

20

1 3

El
Sub Sta

5 5

1

40

40

74

62

8 3

6 9

Maple Lodge
1 to 12

54

23

13

2 0

1 2

1 3

2 5

11

T E
RR

A C
E

L O W E R  Q U E E N ' S  R O A D

A
L B

ER
T

T H E  W I N D S O R S

A L
F R

E D
 R

O
A D

L A N E

R O D I N G  L A N E

HUR S T  R OA D

P a t h

FBP la
yg

ro u
n d

Recreation Ground

Football Ground

P o s t

TCB

Yard
Builder's

P o
s t
s

Dr
ain

D r
ain

D r a i n

Pond

D r
a i n

D r a i n

D r a i n

D r a i n

D r a i n

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

3 & 4 
Application Number: EPF/0567/11 & EPF/0568/11 
Site Name: Land on south side of Roding Lane, opp. 

Junc. with Rous Road, Buckhurst Hill, IG9 
Scale of Plot: 1/2500 

Page 48



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0567/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land on south side of Roding Lane,  

opposite junction with Rous Road  
and adjoining Buckhurst Hill Football Club 
Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill East 
 

APPLICANT: Alliance Land PLC 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Carrying out of site management works to land, consisting of 
clearing ditch, digging out of pond, and levelling of earth 
mounds. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=526549 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 The site lies in the Metropolitan Green Belt, is subject to a blanket Tree Preservation 
Order, and constitutes a valuable environmental resource close to the urban 
settlement of Buckhurst Hill. Realisation of the proposed benefits of the proposal 
would depend upon a sustained period of management following the implementation 
of initial works. The lack of any agreement to such management means that the 
Local Planning Authority has no reasonable surety that the necessary operations will 
be undertaken for a sufficient period for any significant level of benefit to be 
achieved. It is therefore preferable for this wood to be allowed to develop naturally. 
The proposal is therefore contrary to policies GB2A, NC4, NC5, DBE9, and LL10 of 
the Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations.  

 
 
This application is before this Committee since a) the recommendation differs from the views of 
the local council (pursuant to section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s delegated function), and 
b) the proposed development needs to be considered alongside a concurrent application to carry 
out works to preserved trees on the site - which is a type of application that needs to be reported 
to Committee.   
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Carrying out of site management works to land including clearing ditch, digging out of pond, 
levelling of earth mounds, the provision of grassland areas, hedging and enclosing fence. These 
works would be carried out in 5 phases over a 5 year period. The site is covered by a blanket Tree 
Preservation Order and a concurrent application (EPF/0568/11) seeks consent for the removal of 
some trees and associated undergrowth.  
  

Page 49



Description of Site: 
 
A sizeable ‘L’ shaped piece of land with an area of 0.17 hectares. It lies on the south side of 
Roding Lane opposite its junction with Rous Road, and lies close to the rear of properties in Alfred 
Road, and to the north of houses in the Windsors. Originally some or all of the site lay in the site of 
a brickworks factory, and the 49 houses to the south in The Windsors, and the adjoining Buckhurst 
Hill primary school, were built on this factory site. 
 
The site is not publicly owned. It is densely covered with trees and scrub, with trees being 
protected by a blanket Tree Preservation Order. The site lies in the Green Belt but adjoins the 
urban settlement of Buckhurst Hill. Some of the site has earth mounds which in part comprise of 
bricks and rubble used to fill the excavations associated with the original brickworks factory use. 
Whilst at present there is no fence around this site the density of trees, bushes, and scrub makes 
the site very difficult to enter.  
 
Relevant History:  
 
None. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
DBE9 - Loss of amenity.      
GB2A - Development in the Green Belt 
NC4 - Protection of Established Habitat 
NC5 - Promotion of Nature Conservation Schemes. 
RP3 – Water Quality  
RP4 – Contaminated Land 
LL10 – Adequacy of provision for landscape retention. 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL – object – insufficient information on works to be 
undertaken 
  
NEIGHBOURS – 36 properties consulted, and a site notice erected. Two replies received:- 
 
72, ALFRED ROAD: comments that she would like to know what the future plans for the site are. 
 
51, RODING LANE: why are these site management works proposed? Ditches need clearing, yes; 
ponds need managing at times also; but if the badgers and other wildlife are happy in/on the earth 
mounds then what reason has the present owner to level them? What concerns me is that 
‘levelling of earth mounds’ (presumably using a mechanical digger) could involve disturbance of 
wildlife, removal of trees, and nibbling at an area of Green Belt. 
 
EFDC COUNTRYCARE SECTION: I’ve read the management plan for this application and it looks 
fine. I would like to see Maydencroft Land Advisory’s October 2010 report in order to make 
additional comments.  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
A detailed management (or environmental) plan produced by Maydencraft Land Advisory has 
been submitted with this and the concurrent application to thin and remove trees. It states that the 
key aims for the management of this site are a) to improve the amenity value of the site, b) to 
enhance the site for local wildlife, and c) clear the site of rubbish and fly tipping.  
 

Page 50



The whole of this ‘Brickfields’ site is understood to have been initially acquired by Beazer Homes, 
who in the 1980’s developed the 49 homes on that part of the site to the immediate south now 
known as The Windsors. The current owners of the site are Alliance Land Properties, on behalf of 
whom the current application has been made. Their application is an unusual one and some 
concerns have been raised as to whether it is a precursor to future proposals to develop the site - 
although the site’s current Green Belt designation and blanket Tree Preservation Order would not 
allow for built development. The agents for the applicants have stated ‘the applicants are land 
traders and seek to improve site values and then sell on. At present the site is an impenetrable 
jungle whose amenity potential few people can appreciate. Once the site is accessible and secure, 
with areas of wild flowers, more woodland fringe and more ecological value, it will be attractive to 
amenity purchasers’ 
 
To complement any consent to remove/thin trees it is desirable to ensure that other ecological and 
environmental improvements to the site e.g. the creation of grassland glades, planting of wildlife 
flowers, and clearing of ditch and pond, are in fact carried out. To this end a condition is proposed 
which will ensure all aspects of the management plan are undertaken. A 1.2m high chain link 
fence is proposed on the highway boundaries to the site but will be accompanied by a thorn hedge 
planted behind it which will grow through the fence and screen it.  
 
Although only environmental works are proposed for the site there are constraints to overcome in 
respect of works to the spoil heaps and mounds in the site. Firstly, these heaps and mounds 
accommodate badger setts and a licence will have to be obtained from English Nature before any 
works commence. Secondly the proposal to break up these heaps and mounds and spread them 
around the site is likely to require an environmental permit from the Environment Agency since the 
mounds contain waste that could be contaminated. A condition is therefore proposed to be added 
to any planning permission requiring both these issues to have been resolved with the respective 
agencies before any works commence on site.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposals are appropriate development in the Green Belt.  They would provide for a more 
varied and improved natural habitat for vegetation and wildlife on this site. It is recommended that 
permission be granted subject to conditions. 
  
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 51



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2542/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 11 Daleside Gardens  

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6PR 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Jin Yun Yang 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Loft conversion including a side and rear two storey extension 
and a single and part two storey front extension including 
landscaping to the front. (Revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533653 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary 
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the 
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 

3 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed roof 
lights and the window opening(s) on the first floor of the flank elevations shall be 
entirely fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres 
above the floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The subject site is located on the northern side of Daleside Gardens approximately 160 metres 
south west of Vicarage Lane within the parish of Chigwell. The site itself is regular in shape and is 
relatively level. 

Page 52



 
Located to the front of the site is a double storey detached building that is finished in render with a 
plain tile roof. Off street parking is located on the hard standing area in front of the dwelling. A 
medium size timber paling fence is located on the side and rear boundaries which is used to 
screen a private garden area to the rear of the site.  
 
The subject site is located within a well established residential area that mainly comprises of large 
double storey detached dwelling houses. Dwellings within the surrounding locality have consistent 
setbacks from the highway and space/gaps between buildings form an important component to the 
character of the surrounding area.  
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The applicant seeks planning permission for the construction of a single and double storey front 
extension, a single and double storey rear extension and a loft conversion that is to incorporate a 
rear dormer window. 
 
The ground floor element of the front extension would project 2.1 metres from the south western 
corner of the existing dwelling house and 0.6 of a metre from the south eastern corner resulting in 
the front of the building being squared off at ground floor level. The extension would comprise of a 
pitch roof.  
 
The first floor front extension would result in widening the existing double storey front projecting 
element of the dwelling house to incorporate a balcony. The width of the front projecting element 
would be increased from 4.3 metres to 6.2 metres and as a result the roof form of this element 
would be increased in height and also widened.  
 
Currently the rear façade of the dwelling house has staggered setbacks. The proposed rear 
extension would also square off the rear of the building. The ground floor of the extension would 
project 5.5 metres from the north western corner of the dwelling house and 3.6 metres from the 
north eastern corner. The width of the extension would be the same as the existing width of the 
dwelling house, 13.2 metres. The first floor element of the rear extension would more or less have 
the same dimensions as the ground floor. The only exception is that it would be set in 0.5 of a 
metre from the ground floor’s rear façade.  
 
Further living accommodation comprising of 2 bedrooms and an en-suite is proposed as part of the 
loft conversion bringing the total amount of bedrooms within the dwelling house to six. The 
proposed dormer window would project 2.1 metres from the roof slope; have a height of 1.7 
metres and a width of 6.1 metres. 
 
A new hard paved/garden area is also proposed to the front of the existing dwelling house. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1370/11 - Two storey front and rear extensions. Single storey front and rear extensions. Alter 
the roof into gable end and loft conversion involving the construction of rear dormers. Landscaping 
to front with garden Boundary Walls. (withdrawn) 
 
EPF/1883/11 - Proposed loft conversion including a side and rear two storey extension and a 
single and part two storey front extension including landscaping to the front with garden boundary 
walls. (Revised application) (withdrawn) 
 

Page 53



Policies Applied: 
 
Local Policies: 
 
CP2 Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
DBE9 Loss of amenity 
DBE10 Residential Extensions 
 
Summary of Representations 
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL – Object. 
 
The Council objects to this application on the grounds that it is of poor design, overbearing, 
overlooking and will impact on neighbours light. They are also concerned that the street scene will 
be affected. 
 
NEIGHBOURS – the application was notified to 7 neighbouring properties and the following 
responses have been received: 
 
3 PARKLAND CLOSE, CHIGWELL – Objects. 
 

• The proposed development would result in a loss of privacy. 
• The proposal would create a precedent for other similar types of development. 
• If permission was granted, then the dormer window should be obscured glazed to prevent 

overlooking. 
• The scale of the development is out of proportion with other adjoining properties.  
• Submitted plans are inaccurate. Particularly the scales on the block plan. 
• The scale of the development represents more than a 50% increase in the building volume 

and has an overbearing impact on adjoining properties. 
• The scale of the development leading to 6 bedrooms lends itself to increased occupation; 

while off street parking is limited to two off street vehicles. The character of the area would 
be affected due to the increase in on street parking.  

 
9 DALESIDE GARDENS, CHIGWELL 
 

• The proposal would result in an overdevelopment. 
• It would set a precedent to extend other houses and make this side of the road 

overcrowded. 
• These are exclusive homes and not a terrace row. 
• Lack of off street car parking 
• It would result in a loss of light to adjoining dwellings. 
• It would result in increasing pressure on infrastructure, such as sewers and water supply. 
• It would be out of character with the surrounding area. 

 
11a DALESIDE GARDENS, CHIGWELL 
 

• The appearance of the property is not in keeping with the surrounding area. 
• Both the front and rear extension would result in a loss of light to habitable room windows 

and rear patio area. 
• The loft extension would overlook the garden area resulting in a loss of privacy.  
• The building would appear bulk and out of scale to adjoining properties.  

 

Page 54



Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to address in this case are: 
 

• Design and Appearance 
• Neighbouring amenities 
• Other Issues   

 
Design and Appearance: 
 
Turning to the design and siting of the front extension, although it is not ideal for any front 
extension to project pass the consistent front building line of adjoining properties, given that it is 
only 0.6 of a metre and is at ground floor only, it is considered that on balance the siting of the 
front extension is appropriate and that front setbacks from the highway would remain relatively 
consistent.  
 
The size of the front extension is also appropriate. It is considered that the proposed single storey 
front extension and the widening of the front projecting element would not result in an excessive 
amount of bulk or massing.  
 
The front of the building would remain well articulated and visually interesting. The front façade 
would be well balanced and symmetrical with ground and first floor windows aligning with one 
another.  Further features have been incorporated into the design that are found elsewhere within 
Daleside Gardens such as the recessed porch and the front balcony.  
 
The proposed rear extension is also considered to be appropriate in terms of its design and siting. 
The siting of the development would be in approximate alignment with extensions on adjoining 
properties. As such it would not be at odds to the character of the surrounding locality. 
 
Although the extension would be double storey right across the width of the original dwelling it is 
considered that it would not add an excessive amount of bulk and massing to the original dwelling 
house. Given that it conforms to the rear building lines, on balance it is considered that the rear 
extension is appropriate in relation to its scale, form and size.  
 
The proposed dormer window is also considered to be appropriate. It is well proportioned, 
subservient to the roof slope and is set below the ridgeline and off the eaves. 
 
The new hard paved/garden area would not harm the appearance of the street scene. In fact, it 
would be an improvement upon the existing hard standing area as currently it appears tired and in 
a poor state.   
 
The proposed development is appropriate in relation to its design and appearance in that it would 
not result in a detrimental impact to the character and appearance of the surrounding locality and 
the street scene. 
 
Neighbouring amenities: 
 
Turing to the point raised by adjoining neighbours and the Parish Council in that the development 
would be overbearing, both the front and rear extensions would be within the imaginary 45 degree 
line taken from the corner of adjoining dwellings. It is considered that the development would not 
be visually intrusive when viewed from adjoining properties and would not amount to an 
unneighbourly development.  
 

Page 55



It is noted that both adjoining properties have flank windows on the ground and first floors. These 
windows are either for bathrooms, landing areas or are secondary windows to habitable rooms. It 
is noted that there would be some minor overshadowing of adjoining properties however none 
significant enough to warrant a reason for refusal. It is considered that adequate sunlight and 
daylight would be achieved to adjoining habitable rooms and private open spaces areas for the 
majority of the day. 
 
It is considered that the proposal would not give rise to any excessive overlooking. It is noted that 
a new dormer window is proposed and it would have the potential to overlook into adjoining 
properties’ rear garden areas. However existing first floor windows already have the potential to do 
this. Moreover, it is not unreasonable for some overlooking within built up residential areas. New 
first floor flank windows would be conditioned to be obscured glazed to remove the potential of 
direct overlooking into adjoining properties.  
 
Another issue raised within neighbouring representations was if the development was allowed, 
then a precedent would be set for other similar developments. While a planning permission would 
be a material consideration, the fact is each application must be assessed on its own merits so the 
degree of weight to be given to the decision would vary according to the nature of the proposal 
and site conditions.  It would not amount to a precedent and the District Council would still be able 
to refuse to grant permission for development it assesses as harmful in planning terms.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
In conclusion, the proposed development is appropriate in terms of its design and appearance in 
that it would reflect the street scene and the character of the surrounding area. It would not have a 
detrimental impact to the amenities of adjoining property occupiers. The development is in 
accordance with the policies contained within the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and 
therefore it is recommended that the application be approved subject to conditions. 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Lindsay Trevillian 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564 337 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

41.8m

43.3m

39.3m

D a
l e s

i d e

B u
r c r

o f
t

W
i n d

e r
m e

r e

Windrush

Greenacres

16

L i e r r e

W ychw ood

1 5

1 9

1 1 a

10

2

1 1

1 0

Long Meadow

5

3

5 4

1
1

1

5
D A L E S I D E  G A R D E N S

P A R K L A N D S
C L O

S E

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

5 
Application Number: EPF/2542/11 
Site Name: 11 Daleside Gardens, Chigwell 

IG7 6PR 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 57



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2601/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land adjoining Rest Harrow 

The Kennels 
Millers Lane 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6DG 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Row 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Roger Farthing 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolish existing kennels and build a new two bedroom 
house. Change of use of land to residential. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533933 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 The site lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt where there is a presumption against 
inappropriate development except in very special circumstances. Adopted Local 
Plan policy GB2A clearly defines what can be classed as appropriate development 
and this proposal does not fall within any of the deemed acceptable uses within the 
Green Belt. Whilst the applicant has advanced a case of very special circumstances, 
no such exceptional circumstances are apparent in this case that would be sufficient 
to outweigh the normal presumption against inappropriate development. In addition, 
any new development must safeguard the character of the countryside. The 
proposal to change the entire use of land into residential curtilage will further 
encroach upon the land, and is therefore clearly not appropriate, neither does it 
safeguard the character of the countryside. The proposals are therefore contrary to 
the advice contained in Planning Policy Guidance Note 2 and would conflict with 
Policy GB2A of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

2 The Council's policies seek to protect employment sites from redevelopment or 
change of use to other land uses. No supporting evidence has been provided to 
clearly demonstrate the site has been actively marketed for a reasonable period for 
the present use or for a satisfactory alternative community need.  As such this fails 
to comply with policies E4A and E4B of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

3 The site is situated in a rural and unsustainable location, isolated from public 
transport or local facilities, therefore encouraging dependence on private car use 
which is contrary to the aims and objectives of policies CP1, CP2, CP3, and ST1 of 
the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

Page 58



 
4 The proposal will result in a new building that is larger and bulkier than the present 

built form on site. This will further encroach into the Green Belt, and result in a 
conspicuous building that will harm its openness and rural character. This therefore 
fails to accord with policies DBE4, CP2 and GB7A of the Adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations. 
 

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application that is considered by the 
Director of Planning and Economic Development as appropriate to be presented for a Committee 
decision (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council 
function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(k)) 
 
Description of Site:  
   
The application site comprises a plot of land located on the north-eastern side of Millers Lane, 
adjacent to residential properties ‘Rest Harrow’, which is a single storey building containing two 
dwellings. A large fence marks the frontage of the current site, which is presently vacant and 
unkempt. The site was previously used as kennels.  The surrounding area is predominantly open 
fields with Willow Park Farm opposite the site to the south. The land has a gentle slope 
downwards to the east. 
 
There is a dilapidated single storey building within the plot. The building is not listed nor is the site 
within a Conservation area. The whole site however, is within the Metropolitan Green Belt.  
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
This application seeks planning permission to demolish the existing kennel building and to replace 
this with a detached dwelling in a different location within the site.  
 
The building will be a chalet style bungalow and it will be 14.9m deep by 8.4 m wide. Its eaves 
height will be 2.4m and ridge up to 7.5m high.  
 
The accommodation would be spread across two storeys, with the first floor accommodation 
provided within its roof.  
 
Also proposed is the change of use of the land that will see the entire site used as residential 
curtilage.  
 
The existing access off Millers Lane will be altered and the entry and egress will be formed slightly 
west from its present point of entry.   
 
Relevant History: 
 
There have been various applications for extensions to Rest Harrow and in connection with the 
kennels. The most relevant and relevant applications are as follows;  
 
EPF/0168/06 Outline application for the erection of a single storey dwelling to replace existing 
kennels. Refused 
 
EPF/0491/75 Erection of 1 No. isolated kennel. Approved 
 
EPF/1034/92 Retention of use as two dwellings. Refused. 

Page 59



 
CHI/0077/74 Erection of kennels. Approved 
  
Policies Applied: 
 
CP1 – Achieving sustainable design objectives 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment  
CP3 – New Developments 
DBE1/2 – Design of New Buildings 
DBE4 – Design in the Green belt 
DBE9 – Amenity of Neighbouring Properties 
DBE8 – Private Amenity Space 
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt 
GB7A – Conspicuous Development 
H2A – Previously developed land 
ST4 – Road Safety 
ST6 – Vehicle Parking 
LL1/ LL2 – Rural Landscape Character, Appearance and Use 
LL10 – Retained Landscaping 
LL11 – Landscaping Schemes 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
Notification of this application was sent to Chigwell Parish Council and to 9 neighbouring residents.    
 
The following representations have been received: 
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL – The Council has NO COMMENT on this application, as the 
applicant is a Parish Councillor. 
 
BILLINGSBOURNE FARM – Supports the proposal for a new dwelling. Would not want the site to 
be brought back into use as kennels. 
 
THRIFT HOUSE, GRAVEL LANE – Supports this application on grounds that the kennels are 
extremely noisy and create additional traffic along Millers Lane, which is a narrow country lane. A 
two-bedroom bungalow would be more suited. It would remove another commercial building from 
the Green Belt. 
 
BILLINGSBOURNE BARN – Strongly supports this application on grounds that the Kennels should 
never be re-opened because it would have a detrimental effect on noise pollution. There is also 
increase in traffic due to commercial operation that would affect highway safety.  
 
SPRIGS FARM, SPRIGS LANE, BLACKMORE – Supports the application to demolish and 
replace with bungalow. The kennels have not been used for 8 or 9 years. If they were re-opened, 
they would cause unacceptable levels of noise and traffic. 
 
SHEEPCOTES, LAMBOURNE ROAD – Supports the removal of kennels and replacement with 
bungalow. 
 
Issues and Considerations:  
  
This application, which is recommended for refusal, is presented to Members for decision in view 
of the numbers of neighbours who support the proposal.  The main issues to be considered when 
assessing its merits are the appropriateness of the proposed development in the Green Belt, 
consequences for the character and openness of the Breen Belt, whether there is justification for 

Page 60



the loss of an employment site and whether very special circumstances exist that outweigh any 
harm identified. In addition, consideration will be given to the impact on amenities of the occupiers 
of neighbouring dwellings and any impact to the interests of parking and highway safety.   
 
Relevant planning history for the site 
 
The history for this site shows an outline application was sought to erect a single storey dwelling to 
replace existing kennels at this site under planning application ref: EPF/0168/06. This was refused 
planning permission.  
 
Other relevant history around the site is the adjacent site ‘Rest Harrow’ which is presently 
subdivided into two separate residential units. However, history shows planning permission was 
refused for a proposal to separate this into two separate units in 1992. The kennels were approved 
in the 1970s for use by the occupants of Rest Harrow. 
  
New development on Green Belt 
 
The site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt. The Council policy clearly states there is a 
presumption against new buildings except for the use of agriculture and other appropriate uses. 
Therefore, any development outside of the stated categories represents inappropriate 
development and should be resisted. New residential development can only be allowed in very 
special circumstances.  
 
The proposal is to erect a new, detached two-storey residential property, which is clearly deemed 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt. Despite there being Willow Park Farm house to the 
south and two properties 1 and 2 Rest Harrow, the area appears quite rural and it exhibits wide 
open spaces.  
 
The applicant has also cited ‘very special circumstances’ because the site already accommodates 
a large kennel building and replacing it with the new dwelling would serve to tidy up the site and 
bring it back into use. The statement also argues that there is a reduction in the footprint from the 
present built form of 112.5sqm to 104 sqm, some 8sqm reduction. 
 
There is some inaccuracy with the existing drawings submitted for the kennels because the 
drawings show a larger building than the building on site, which is a dilapidated building with an 
extremely shallow pitched roof. Due to the state of the building, it is not suitable to be converted 
into residential use. Furthermore, even if the footprint shown on the submitted drawing is 
accepted, the replacement building is significantly higher than the present built form. The claimed 
8sqm reduction in floor area is a negligible amount and does not result in a more open aspect 
overall.  
 
Due to its excessive height, the proposed new dwelling would result in further urbanisation of the 
area. The fact that the dwelling will replace an existing derelict kennel building does not amount to 
very special circumstances. No very special circumstances have therefore been demonstrated. 
Government Guidance Note PPG2 gives advice that there is a presumption against inappropriate 
development within the Green Belt, which this will clearly be.   
 
Conspicuous Development in the Green Belt 
 
When seen from the front, the new dwelling appears to have a narrow façade that on the face of it, 
would appear to be acceptable. However, when viewed from an oblique angle the proposed 
building will be significantly higher than the boundary fence thus it will be clearly visible from the 
road and from the surrounding countryside due to its excessively high roof. The roof brings the 
overall height of the building to 7.5m. Therefore, the new building would be higher than the 
properties at Rest Harrow. It will result in a conspicuous building that would be out of keeping and 

Page 61



out of character in its rural context. This is clear when the proposed dwelling is compared with the 
height and scale of the bungalows at Rest Harrow. 
  
Despite the argument in the applicant’s supporting statement that the site would become more 
open along its front boundary, if this proposal were to be approved, it is reasonable to expect the 
existing high timber fencing to remain in-situ because this would be needed in order to ensure 
privacy for future occupiers. The view from within the site will therefore not become more open if 
this proposal were to be approved. 
 
In their statement, it is also suggested that the openness of the Green Belt can be safeguarded by 
removing permitted development rights for the site in respect of new outbuildings and hard 
surfaces. Whilst this can be secured by planning condition, it does not prevent encroachment into 
the residential curtilage by domestic paraphernalia. This would see the future occupiers using the 
garden for domestic paraphernalia such as play equipment, washing lines, garden furniture, etc. 
 
Therefore, the argument put forward in their statement does not amount to very special 
circumstances to allow for inappropriate development of this site. 
 
Sustainable development  
 
The site is in a relatively remote location not well served by public transport or within convenient 
walking distance of services.  Consequently future occupiers will be heavily reliant on private car 
use. Encouraging a new residential development in such a remote location would be contrary to 
the provisions of the Council’s policies that encourage sustainable patterns of development in the 
more urban areas. A rural area such as this fails to achieve sustainable development objectives.  
 
Design of new buildings and impact on the character and appearance of the area 
 
The immediate property ‘Rest Harrow’ is a pair of bungalows with shallow roofs. Although the 
proposed building is narrow in plan form from the front, due to its extremely high pitch, the roof is 
extraordinarily high. Its roof would appear visually prominent when seen from the sides i.e. the 
west and east elevation. It would be higher than its boundary.  
 
Even if the Local Planning Authority were to impose strict controls regarding the types and colours 
of all the external materials to be used, this will not mitigate its visual impact due to the proposed 
building’s excessive height, depth and bulk of its roof. It is considered that the design of the new 
dwelling would poorly relate to the vernacular of its rural setting, the neighbouring properties and 
open rural character of the area.  
 
The design of the proposed new dwelling would therefore be out of keeping within the locality. It 
would not complement the aesthetics of the surrounding rural countryside and it does not fit in 
within its surroundings. 
 
Neighbouring Amenity 
 
In considering neighbouring occupiers amenity, the proposed new dwelling is adequately set back 
from neighbouring properties and will not result in overlooking, loss of light or privacy. It is 
considered that there would be no loss of amenity to neighbouring occupiers.  
 
The proposed private garden areas that form the curtilage for this new dwelling would give rise to 
a significant level of amenity space that would be more than adequate for the future occupants of 
the proposed dwelling.   
 

Page 62



Employment site 
 
It is accepted that the site is presently vacant and has been so for an undefined length of time. 
There is however, no supporting evidence submitted with the application that demonstrates the 
length of time this site has been left vacant.  
 
In addition, there is no evidence to suggest whether an alternative employment use has been 
sought for this site. The supporting statement argues that the special circumstances in this case 
for the loss of an employment site include the fall in net income and decline in viability given the 
economic nature for kennelling purposes. In addition, due to the limited size of the plot, it makes it 
difficult to market. However, this does not demonstrate other community uses have been explored. 
It does not follow that the site would be better suitable for open market housing.  
 
Despite the strong support shown by neighbours, it has not been proven that in order to prevent 
the kennels being re-instated this amounts to very special circumstances that outweighs the loss 
of an employment site. Any approval on this basis would amount to a material consideration of 
some weight in favour of a similar proposal for giving consent to residential reuse of commercial 
premises without proper supporting evidence.  
 
Therefore, although this site is presently derelict, its lawful use is for commercial purposes that 
could generate employment opportunities. It has not been demonstrated that this site is 
considered suitable for a change to non-employment use i.e. residential. 
 
Parking and Highway safety 
 
The garage size does not comply with the garage size contained within the Adopted Parking 
standard. Notwithstanding the limited size of the garage there appears to be adequate off street 
parking at the front to allow off street parking for up to three cars. On that basis there is no 
objection to the proposal on parking and highway safety grounds. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Impact on Trees and Landscaping - No tree or landscape concerns with this proposal. 
 
Contaminated Land – due to the previous use of the site as Kennels and the presence of an in-
filled pond, there is potential for contaminants to be present on the site.  Accordingly, the 
submission of a phased contaminated land survey should be required by the use of planning 
conditions, along with any mitigation methods considered necessary should approval be granted.   
  
Conclusion: 
 
This application is unacceptable because it will result in the erection of a new residential dwelling 
within the Green Belt. The special circumstances that have been put forward in this case have 
been given consideration but are not considered sufficient to outweigh the harm caused by the 
proposal. 
 
In light of the above appraisal, it is considered that this new dwelling is at odds with Government 
Advice and contravenes this Council’s Green Belt policies. The overall height and size of the 
building, is also unacceptable in its rural context because it would cause further harm to the 
openness of the Green Belt.  
 
The possible loss of an employment site is also not supported. The proposed development cannot 
be mitigated by the use of planning conditions.  On this basis, the proposal fails to accord with 
Local Plan policies and it is therefore recommended that planning permission be refused.   
 

Page 63



Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Ms Paula Onyia 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564103 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 64



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

52.1m

1 . 2 2 m  RH

1

Rest Harrow

2

Thrift House

Farm
Willow Park

M I L L ER ' S L A N E

G
R A

V E
L  

L A
N

E

Issues

Pond

*EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

6 
Application Number: EPF/2601/11 
Site Name: Land adjoining Rest Harrow, The Kennels, 

Millers Lane, Chigwell, IG7 6DG,  
Scale of Plot: 1/2500 

Page 65



Report Item No: 7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2610/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 206 Queens Road  

Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5AX 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

APPLICANT: Dr Sabu Jacob 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing detached house and erection of 
replacement dwelling, front wall with piers and railings. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533973 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 2278B-01, 02a, 03a, 04a, 05, 06a, 07, TPC_QR 1 Issue A. 
 

2 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary 
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the 
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 

3 If any tree, shrub or hedge shown to be retained in accordance with the approved 
plan, TPC_QR_01 Issue A, is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes 
severely damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, 
another tree, shrub or hedge of the same size and species shall be planted within 3 
months at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. If within a period of five years from the date of planting any 
replacement tree, shrub or hedge is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree, shrub or hedge of the same 
species and size as that originally planted shall, within 3 months, be planted at the 
same place. 
 

4 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement in accordance with 
BS:5837:2005 (Trees in relation to construction) has been submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out 
only in accordance with the approved Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural 
Method Statement unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation. 
 

Page 66



5 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. These works shall be carried out as approved. The hard 
landscaping details shall include, as appropriate, and in addition to details of existing 
features to be retained: proposed finished levels or contours; means of enclosure 
and car parking layout. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

6 The proposed window opening in the western flank elevation at first floor level shall 
be fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above 
the floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be permanently 
retained in that condition. 
 

7 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1, Classes A and B shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 

8 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site shall be 
installed and maintained in working order prior to the commencement of the 
development. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to clean 
vehicles immediately before leaving the site. 
 

9 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

10 All material excavated from below ground works and materials from the demolished 
building shall be removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 

11 Prior to the commencement of the development details showing the means to 
prevent the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming 
operational and shall be retained at all times.  
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) and since it is for a type of development that cannot be determined by Officers if 
more than two objections material to the planning merits of the proposal to be approved are 

Page 67



received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council 
function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The proposal site contains a large detached dwelling which would be demolished to accommodate 
the works. The plot is more generous than those in the immediate vicinity and extends for some 
distance to the rear. The site is located on the main entry point into Buckhurst Hill town centre. The 
immediate area contains a mix of dwelling styles, a blend of old and newer houses, including some 
Locally Listed Buildings; however the area is not within a conservation area. The site slopes 
slightly from west to east and the house is set approximately 0.50m above the level of the road. 
 
Description of Proposal  
 
The proposal is a revised application following the refusal of planning consent (EPF/0732/11) and 
the subsequent dismissal of an appeal to the Planning Inspectorate (APP/J1535/A/11/2158549). 
The proposal is to demolish the existing two-storey dwelling on the site and replace it with a new 
detached structure. The proposed dwelling would have a similar styled front elevation to the 
building that it would replace. A detached garage to the eastern side would be replaced by an 
attached 1½ storey projection with front and rear dormer windows. A box dormer window would be 
inserted on the rear elevation roof slope. The roof would be hipped with differing ridge height 
levels to a height of 10.5m. A wall with railings and piers would be constructed along the front and 
side boundary with a height ranging from 1.4m to 1.8m.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/0085/11 - Demolish existing house and erection of new family dwelling. Withdrawn Decision - 
16/03/2011 
EPF/0732/11 - Demolish existing house and build new single family house. (Revised application) 
Refuse Permission – 20/06/11. Appeal dismissed – 18/11/11.  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Policy CP1 – Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives 
Policy CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
Policy CP3 – New Development 
Policy CP4 – Energy Conservation 
Policy CP5 – Sustainable Building  
Policy CP6 – Achieving Sustainable Urban Development Patterns 
Policy CP7 – Urban Form and Quality 
Policy DBE1 – Design of New Buildings 
Policy DBE2 – Effect on Neighbouring Properties 
Policy DBE3 - Design in Urban Areas 
Policy DBE8 – Private Amenity Space 
Policy DBE9 – Excessive Loss of Amenity to Neighbouring Properties 
Policy ST1 – Location of Development 
Policy ST2 – Accessibility of Development  
Policy ST4 – Road Safety 
Policy ST6 – Vehicle Parking 
Policy H2A – Previously Developed Land 
Policy LL10 – Adequacy of Provision for Landscape Retention 
Policy LL11 – Landscaping Schemes 
 

Page 68



Summary of Representations 
 
BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL: Objection. Not in keeping with surroundings and 
overbearing. Gates and railing’s not in keeping. Concern about the retention of trees on 
landscaping drawing. Inconsistency between plans and elevations and overlooking on side of 
No204 Queen’s Road.  
 
(35 properties consulted – 6 replies received).  
 
204 QUEENS ROAD: Objection (2 Letters). Inconsistency in plans east floor plan shows two 
windows and the elevation plan show none. Large bulky wall, double the length of existing, devoid 
of character facing my house. Loss of privacy. Loss of view from my home office. No respect paid 
in scale or bulk to adjacent properties. The proposal has no architectural merit and the gates are 
out of keeping. Reference is also made to inspector’s comments on refused scheme.  
 
189a QUEENS ROAD: Objection (2 Letters). Roof line will appear bulky and out of scale. Concern 
about lorry movements to and from the site. There is room for parking for more than two vehicles 
to the front. Changes to the width of the entrance to the site will impact on pedestrian safety. 
Inconsistency in plans east floor plan shows two windows and the elevation plan show none. The 
demolition of the building will cause noise, pollution and traffic problems. Building will be out of 
keeping. Loss of view of the woods. Gates out of keeping.  
 
191 QUEENS ROAD: Objection. Seems ridiculous to demolish a perfectly good house. Loss of 
privacy. Virtually the same as refused scheme. Loss of parking space and gates would be out of 
keeping.  
 
150 QUEENS ROAD: Objection. This house is too big and would adversely affect the visual 
amenities of the locality. 
 
1 LUCTONS AVENUE: Objection. I recognise the efforts gone into the new design to gain 
planning, except for electronic sliding gates.  They are definitely out of character with ingress/exit 
to a house in Queen's Road and totally unnecessary. If this application is passed it sets a 
precedent for the demolition of more character properties on the flimsy excuse of 'not fit for 
purpose', and the very real possibility of Buckhurst Hill becoming a soulless place of over-large 
and vulgar housing.  
 
6 THE MEADWAY: Objection. The new design is still bulky and dominating with hideous electronic 
gates and therefore the Inspector’s comments are still valid and we strongly object. There is an 
extensive site to the rear with plenty of room to extend this property without losing the frontage of 
character in one of Buckhurst Hill's key roads. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues that arise with this application relate to: 
 

• Design Considerations 
• Residential Amenity 
• Highway Matters/Parking  
• Trees and Landscape 
• Planning history/ Planning Inspectorate decision.  

 

Page 69



Design Considerations 
 
The previous application was the subject of an appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, following a 
refusal at committee level, where it was subsequently dismissed on design grounds. The 
Inspector’s decision, which is a material planning consideration, must be given appropriate weight 
and provides a good starting point in the judgement of this proposal and to ascertain if previous 
concerns have been overcome.  
 
The Inspector firstly supported the Local Planning Authority’s previously held view that although 
the immediate area has some buildings of local architectural merit the dwelling on the application 
site, whilst pleasant, was not worthy of retention.  
 
The Inspector was of the opinion that the house retained generous gaps to the side boundaries 
which give the site a spacious setting. There was concern that the lack of a staggered front 
elevation resulted in an overly large, bland structure that related poorly to its neighbours. The 
applicant has attempted to address this concern by staggering the front elevation along the same 
footprint of the existing building. The bulky projection along the boundary with No204 Queen’s 
Road has been reduced with a chalet style element with front and rear dormer windows in a 
deeply hipped roof. The height of the main ridge has been reduced by approximately 0.50m to 
reduce bulk. The building has been altered to respect the design of the structure it would replace. 
The chalet style element reduces bulk and ensures a more open feel whilst benefiting from the 
greater frontage that this property has. The step down to the chalet style element suggests a 
subsidiary extension to the main house and pays much closer attention to its relationship with the 
adjacent dwelling in an acceptable manner. It is considered that the resultant dwelling would be 
less dominant in the streetscene and more in keeping with surrounding development. The chalet 
style roof and single storey garage to the western side retain a level of openness and the proposal 
is now less intrusive and apparent within the streetscene. 
 
The attempt at Georgian architecture, alluded to by the Inspector, has been resisted on this 
occasion. It had previously been the Local Planning Authority’s position that the proposal was 
more an attempt to reference classical architecture as opposed to a true attempt to mimic the 
Georgian style. In any case this design which instead references the building it would replace is 
much more appropriate. The dormer windows, also a concern, have been removed from the main 
roof plane and their positioning on the chalet style element is much more inconspicuous. Although 
dormer windows are not a characteristic of Queen’s Road, well designed dormer windows that do 
not dominate the subject dwelling are an acceptable design solution to achieving increased 
floorspace. The proposal contains a box dormer on the rear elevation. The design of this is 
generally acceptable. It would not be visible from within the streetscene and is a common solution 
to creating loft space at the rear of buildings. It is therefore concluded that, on the issue of design, 
the applicant has addressed the concerns of the Planning Inspectorate and Members and has 
proposed a dwelling which is now more suitable for this plot at this location.  
 
The proposal includes a wall with piers and railings to the front. Electronic gates have been 
removed from the application by way of amended plans. The proposed railings and piers are not 
excessively high and would not be out of character.  
 
Neighbour Amenity  
 
The single storey garage would be adjacent to the western neighbouring property, No208. This 
house is served by three side elevation windows. The single storey nature of the development 
would ensure that there would be no serious loss of light to these windows. A window on the 
ground floor level would already suffer some loss of light from an existing structure at the 
boundary, and there would be no material change to this scenario.  
 

Page 70



The proposal replacement dwelling would increase the bulk and scale of the dwelling at the 
boundary with No204. The bulk has been reduced from the previous application which was two-
storey with a hipped roof above. The chalet style roof above a single storey would not appear 
intrusive and although there would be some overshadowing of the garden area in the later part of 
the day it would not seriously encroach on amenity. There would be no loss of light to rear facing 
windows. The comments from the adjacent neighbours at No204 about loss of view are noted 
however it is a well established planning principle that loss of a private view is not a material 
planning consideration. Serious loss of visual amenity has already been discounted.  
 
Highway matters  
 
There is adequate space for parking to the front, as indicated on drawing 2278B-04a and the 
proposal would have no impact on highway safety, utilising an existing crossover.  
 
Trees/Landscaping Issues 
 
There is a group of trees in the rear garden (Yew, Scots Pine and Horse Chestnut) which provide 
good screening to the properties to the rear. The tree report submitted with this application shows 
that they can easily be accommodated for without their wellbeing being compromised during 
demolition and construction activities. The trees section of the Council has been consulted and 
suggests tree protection and retention conditions to ensure that these trees are retained. A 
condition requiring hard and soft landscaping details has also been required. The application will 
be conditioned accordingly.  
 
Neighbour Comments  
 
Some of the neighbour and Parish Council concerns have been addressed in the preceding text. 
However other issues have been raised. An inconsistency in the submitted plans has been 
brought to attention by a number of objectors. An amended plan, 2278B-03a, has been received to 
confirm the two side facing windows on the east elevation flank. These raise no concerns being at 
ground floor level and part obscured by an existing wall and some screening. Concern about 
disturbance during the construction phase has been alluded to; this can be controlled to some 
degree by an hours of construction condition. Comments have referred to loss of amenity to 
residents in Knighton Lane. However the distance from the rear elevation to rear boundary (30m 
approx) would not give rise to serious overlooking.   
 
Other Matters 
 
It is considered appropriate to remove permitted development rights for Classes A and B for 
extensions to the dwelling as this could have an adverse impact on neighbour amenity and add 
significant bulk to an already large dwelling and should fall under the control of the Local Planning 
Authority.  
 
Conclusion 
 
The proposed dwelling has overcome previous concerns with regard to design and would now 
have an acceptable impact on the existing streetscene. The bulk and scale has been reduced to 
an acceptable level which now retains a level of openness to the site. There are no serious 
concerns with regard to amenity. Therefore having regard to all material planning considerations 
this proposal is deemed acceptable and recommended for approval with conditions.   
  
  
 
 

Page 71



Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Dominic Duffin 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 56433 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 72



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

77.1m

78.9m

81.1m

1 b

19
4d

194

to 178

1 3

3
1

16
8

15
8a

16
0

1 6
8 a

15
8

184 186

Bank

P O

175

188 to
192

182

1 7 1

1 7

92a

1 51 1

94
92

90
a

2 5

Braeside School
2 7

196a

1 6
8 b

17
0

90

7

40

38

26

2 1

28

1 5

19
6

204

1 8 9

1 8 9 a
1 9 1

1 7
6

179

5 b 17 a

104

116

Oak
House

1a

114

230

210
228 224

2

226

1

House

5

11

14

1  t o  5

3

7

Buckhurst Hill

1 5

1

8

Q U E E N ' S  R O A D

W E S T B U R Y  L A N E

C L
O S

E

GR OV E

W I MB O R N E  C L O S ED U C H E S S

Park

FBs

Car

*

*

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

7 
Application Number: EPF/2610/11 
Site Name: 206 Queens Road, Buckhurst Hill 

IG9 5AX 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 73



Report Item No: 8 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0003/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Roding Cottage 

Roding Lane 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6BE 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

APPLICANT: Ms Karen Peterson  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Removal of agricultural occupancy condition attached to 
CHI/173.A/70. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=534015 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
NONE 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site is located on the southern side of Roding Lane virtually opposite the private 
entrance into the Old Chigwellians sporting facilities on the outskirts of the parish of Chigwell.  
 
The site once formed a pair of agricultural workers dwellings in connection with the main dwelling 
house. The pair of dwellings was used to accommodate staff for the supervision of horses stabled 
on the premises in connection to racing and hunting. The pair of dwellings was converted into one 
dwelling in 2001. The site has its own vehicle access, off street parking and private garden area.  
 
The subject site and the surrounding area are located within the Metropolitan Green Belt.   
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The application is for the removal of an agricultural occupancy condition attached to planning 
permission CHI/173A/70. The application was for the erection of a pair of semi-detached houses. 
This was granted permission subject to two conditions, one relating to development in accordance 
with the approved plans and the other, which is the subject of this application, is set out below: 
 
“The occupation of the dwellings shall be limited to persons employed in connection with the 
management of the house, its grounds and stables or in agriculture as defined in section 221(1) of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1962 and the dependants of such persons”.  

Page 74



 
Relevant History: 
 
CHI/0278/68 - A stable block, shed and 5 loose boxes (approved) 
 
CHI/0173/70 - Erection of a pair of semi detached dwellings (approved) 
 
CHI/0173A/70 - Details of the erection of a pair of semi detached dwellings (approved) 
 
EPF/1113/75 - Removal of restrictive occupancy condition on CHI/173/70. (withdrawn) 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Local policies that are relevant to this application are: 
 
GB2A – Development within the Green Belt 
GB17A – Removal of Agricultural Occupancy Conditions 
 
Summary of Representations 
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL: 
 
The Council OBJECTS to this application on the grounds that there is insufficient evidence 
provided to support the claim that no agricultural activity has occurred at the property for the 
required time, to allow the condition to be removed. 
 
NEIGHBOURS: 
 
The application was advertised by placing a site notice on the site. No representations were 
received at the time of writing this report. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issue with this application is whether or not a sufficient case has been made to justify the 
removal of the agricultural occupancy condition from the property. 
 
Policy GB2A of the Local Plan establishes the general principles of development within the Green 
Belt and allows for the erection of a dwelling for an agricultural, horticultural or forestry worker 
where it has been proven that such a dwelling is required. Policy GB17B sets the principles for 
removal of an agricultural occupancy condition. This sets out the requirements that must be 
undertaken/justified before the removal of an agricultural occupancy condition is permitted.  
 
Firstly, the applicant has stated that the dwellings were erected to fulfil a particular need that has 
long ceased when the M11 motorway was constructed through the area which was once used to 
exercise horses. Since that time the dwellings have not been used to accommodate agricultural 
workers. The occupiers of the main dwelling have used the property intermittently since they 
purchased the land and buildings but state that they have no need for the dwelling to be connected 
with the running of the main house and associated land.  The applicant claims that given there is 
no longer a functional need for the dwelling due to the material change in circumstances/character 
of the surrounding area, then there is no longer a need for this type of dwelling.    
 
The property has been marketed at an asking price of £600,000. Three independent valuations of 
the property from Bairstow Eaves, Phillip Leigh, and Fine & Country Real Estates Agents have 
valued the property at £1 million if unencumbered by the agricultural occupancy condition.  
 

Page 75



The property has been marketed through an estate agent with an asking price of around 40% less 
than the unencumbered market price of the property. It has been advertised locally in the Chigwell 
Life and Property Mart on at least six occasions in 2011. The property also appeared on the Phillip 
Leigh Estate Agents website, was advertised in the window of the Chigwell Branch and a ‘v’ shape 
‘for sale’ board was erected outside the site on Roding Lane. During this time of marketing of over 
a year, no requests for sales particulars were requested and no viewings took place.  
 
It is also required that the applicant demonstrates and provides a survey of the agricultural 
community to assess the existing agricultural need in the locality for the dwelling. Although a 
formal survey has not been submitted, the applicant has made some enquiries into the need for 
accommodation within the agricultural community. Within the supporting documentation the 
applicant states that there has been a significant change over the years in terms of how land is 
utilised. In particular, it is suggested that there are no intensive livestock farms in the area and the 
land that is used for agricultural purposes is for arable production which is more mechanised 
rather than labour intensive. It was also concluded that other land within the surrounding area is in 
use for playing fields for sport and recreation and residential, not agriculture.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
In conclusion, it is considered that sufficient evidence has been presented to demonstrate that 
there is not a need in the locality for this agricultural dwelling, as such it would not be reasonable 
to insist on the retention of the condition which would mean that the property would lie empty 
rather than providing a home. The application is therefore recommended for approval.  
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Lindsay Trevillian 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564 337 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 76



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 

49.1m

39.6m

44.2m

Ivy Cottage

Merleswood

Amberley House

Wakes Hall

T h e  R o d i n g s

Roding Cottage

G a
s  D

i s t
r i b

u t
i o n

 S
t a t

i o n

M11 Logistics Centre

M
 1

1

R O D I N G  L A N E

D r a i n

D ra i n

D r a i n

D r a i n

Pond

Tennis CourtsEFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

8 
Application Number: EPF/0003/12 
Site Name: Roding Cottage, Roding Lane 

Chigwell, IG7 6BE 
Scale of Plot: 1/2500 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	Plans South Map
	Plans South Members Photographs 2011-12

	3 Minutes
	7 Development Control
	South 28 Mar 2012


